IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

: Çase No.

FILED

SID J. WHITE

DAVID R. LEONARD,

JUN 29 1998

Petitioner,

CLERK SUPPENE COURT

STATE OF FLORIDA,

vs.

93,332

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

A. VICTORIA WIGGINS Assistant Public Defender FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 0081019

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33831 (941) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

TOPICAL

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner, David R. Leonard, was the Appellant in the Second District Court of Appeal and the defendant in the trial court. Respondent, the State of Florida, was the Appellee in the Second District Court of Appeal. The appendix to this brief contains a copy of the decision rendered on June 10, 1998.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On November 6, 1995, an affidavit of Violation of Probation was filed alleging that the Appellant, DAVID R. LEONARD, violated his probation in case numbers 89-7782 and 89-9559. In case number 89-7782, the State Attorney for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Hillsborough County filed an information on May 31, 1989 charging Leonard with one count of lewd and lascivious act on a child under the age of 16 years in violation of Section 800.04, Florida Statutes (1987). In case number 89-9559, the State Attorney filed an information charging Leonard with two counts of sexual battery on a child under the age of 12 years in violation of Section 794.011(2), Florida Statutes (1987). On September 8, 1989, Leonard pled guilty to the charges in both cases, and was sentenced in both cases according to a negotiated plea agreement. number 89-7782, Leonard was placed on 15 years of probation on the count of lewd and lascivious act upon a child. In case number 89-9559, Leonard was sentenced on two counts of sexual battery to 30 years of imprisonment that was to be suspended after 9 years followed by 21 years of probation. These sentences were to be served concurrently with each other and with the sentence imposed in case number 89-7782. On September 27, 1993, Leonard was released on probation.

The affidavit of Violation of Probation alleged that Leonard had violated condition (5) which required Leonard to live without violating the law, and special condition (19) which prohibited him from having contact with any child until he completed the Outpa-

tient Sex Offender Program. These allegations arose from events which allegedly took place on October 15, 1995. On August 30, 1996, Leonard pleaded no contest to violating condition (19) of probation. The trial court adjudicated Leonard guilty of violating his probation. In case number 89-7782, Leonard was sentenced to 30 years in prison. In case number 89-9559, Leonard was sentenced to 30 years in prison to run concurrently with the sentence in case number 89-7782. Leonard timely filed his notice of appeal on September 20, 1996.

In his appeal, Leonard argued that his sentence of 30 years in prison for the offense of committing a lewd and lascivious act, a second degree felony, was illegal. On June 10, 1998, the Second District Court of Appeal issued an opinion dismissing Leonard's direct appeal pursuant to Section 924.051(4), Florida Statutes (Supp. 1996) since there was no contemporaneous objection to the illegal sentence and no filing of a post-conviction relief motion under Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.800. An amended notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction was filed on June 22,1998.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

In holding that Section 924.051(4), Florida Statutes (Supp. 1996) bars appellate review of a sentence exceeding the statutory maximum without a contemporaneous objection, the Second District Court of Appeal is in conflict with another district which has held that § 924.051(4) does not prohibit review of such illegal sentences regardless of whether there is an objection. The Second District Court of Appeal's decision in this case that this issue was unpreserved for appeal was in conflict with the Fifth District Court of Appeal which has held that the imposition of an illegal sentence constitutes fundamental error.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

WHETHER THE DECISION IN LEONARD v. STATE, Case No. 96-4245 (Fla. 2d DCA June 10, 1998), CONFLICTS WITH THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT AND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OPINIONS AS TO WHETHER § 924.051(4) PROHIBITS REVIEW OF A SENTENCE EXCEEDING THE STATUTORY MAXIMUM ON DIRECT APPEAL WITHOUT A CONTEMPORANEOUS OBJECTION?

This Court has held that neither statute or any rule would take away the right to appeal conduct which would invalidate a defendant's plea. Robinson v. State, 373 So. 2d 898, 902 (Fla. 1979). Among those issues which may be properly appealed from a plea is the illegality of a sentence. <u>Id.</u> Subsequent decisions from this Court have sustained the defendant's right to appeal an illegal sentence imposed pursuant to a plea agreement. King v State, 681 So. 2d 1136 (Fla. 1996) (trial court can imposed a negotiated sentence not specifically authorized by statute, but it cannot imposed an illegal sentence); Larson v. State, 572 So. 2d 1368 (Fla. 1991) (Contemporaneous objection rule is inapplicable to probation conditions which are illegal); Williams v. State, 500 So. 2d 501 (Fla. 1986) (appellate review is always available where court has imposed an illegal sentence, even if the judgment and sentence resulted from a guilty plea). This Court defined an illegal sentence as "one that exceeds the maximum period set forth by law for a particular offense without regard to the guidelines." <u>Davis v. State</u>, 661 So. 2d 1193, 1196 (Fla. 1996).

In a recent decision, the Second District Court of Appeal has held that an unpreserved sentencing error involving an illegal sentence could only be reviewed on direct appeal because there was also a preserved error. Denson v. State, 23 Fla. L. Weekly D1216 (Fla. 2d DCA May 13, 1998). In Denson, the defendant pled guilty to two counts of delivery of cocaine and two counts of possession of cocaine. At the sentencing hearing, the defendant objected to the use of a prior conviction for conspiracy to deliver cocaine as a qualifying offense to support treatment as a habitual felony offender. However, the defendant failed to object to the habitual sentence for possession of cocaine. Id. Also, there was no objection to the written sentence which did not conform to the oral sentence. The Second District Court accepted jurisdiction to review the two unpreserved errors stating, "without a preserved error, these unpreserved sentencing errors would not give us jurisdiction over this appeal." Id. at 1217.

The holding in <u>Denson</u> and in the instant case is in conflict with an opinion from the Fifth District Court of Appeal which holds that § 924.051(4), Fla. Stat. (Supp. 1996) does not prohibit a defendant who enters a plea from appealing a sentence which exceeds the statutory maximum regardless of a contemporaneous objection.

Ortiz v. State, 696 So. 2d 916 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997).

Since the decisions mentioned above hold that an illegal sentence may be corrected on direct appeal regardless of whether there is a contemporaneous objection, the Second District Court of

Appeal's decision in the instant case is in conflict with the decisions of this Court and other District Courts of Appeal.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing arguments and authorities, Petitioner has demonstrated that conflict does exist with the instant decision and this Court as well as other District Courts of Appeal so as to invoke discretionary review.