(/d)

FILED

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JUL 15 1998

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

DAVID R. LEONARD,

Petitioner,

٧.

Case No. 93,332

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

HELENE S. PARNES Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0955825 2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700 Tampa, Florida 33607-2366 (813) 873-4739

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Second District Court of Appeal is not in conflict with this Court. Since the Fifth District is in conflict with this Court, this Court should not accept jurisdiction of this appeal.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

WHETHER THE DECISION IN <u>LEONARD V. STATE</u>, CASE NO. 96-4245 (Fla. 2d DCA June 10, 1998), CONFLICTS WITH THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT AND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OPINIONS AS TO WHETHER §924.051(4) PROHIBITS THE STATUTORY MAXIMUM ON DIRECT APPEAL WITHOUT A CONTEMPORANEOUS OBJECTION?

(As stated by Petitioner)

In the instant case, the Second District Court of Appeal held, as follows:

Because Leonard pleaded guilty to the underlying offense and failed to bring this error to the trial court's attention first, pursuant to section 924.051(4), Florida Statutes (Supp. 1996), we are without jurisdiction to entertain this issue on direct appeal. Therefore, we dismiss this appeal without prejudice to Leonard to seek correction of this possible error by filing a motion pursuant to Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.800(a).

Although the Fifth District Court of Appeal in Ortiz v. State, 696 So. 2d 916 (Fla. 5th DCA

1997) held that the legality of a sentence is an appealable issue even though the defendant plead guilty or no contest and failed to object to the sentence **nor filed a motion to correct it**, the Second District follows this Court's analysis in the <u>Amendments to the Florida Rules of Appellate</u> Procedure, 685 So.2d 773 (Fla. 1996), which clearly states that a defendant who pleads guilty or no contest without reserving a legally dispositive issue to "nevertheless appeal a sentencing error, providing it has been timely preserved by motion to correct the sentence." <u>Amendments</u>, 685 So.2d at 774. Since the Fifth District, not the Second District, is in conflict with this Court, this Court should not accept jurisdiction of this appeal.¹

¹This Court should note that the Fourth District in <u>Thompson v. State</u>, 708 So. 2d 289 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998) has certified the following question as one of great public importance to this Court:

UNDER SECTION 924.051(3), (4), FLORIDA STATUTES (SUPP. 1996) AND

Further, discretionary review of this appeal is not warranted since the sentence was legal. Petitioner's sentence constituted an upward departure sentence, and the trial court filed written reasons: "stipulated plea negotiated at request of victims' families - [defendant] avoids minimum mandatory life sentence." An upward departure sentence is justified when a defendant voluntarily agrees to a negotiated plea. White v. State, 531 So. 2d 711 (Fla. 1988)(where defendant voluntarily pleads guilty, and agreed-to sentencing range constitutes an upward departure, sentence was properly imposed); Smith v. State, 529 So. 2d 1106 (Fla. 1988)(approving upward departure sentence based upon plea bargain, where bargain had been knowingly and voluntarily entered after consultation with counsel); Zimmerman v. State, 554 So. 2d 670 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990)(defendant's negotiated plea was a valid reason for departure).

The Fourth District agrees with the First District's holding in <u>Stone v. State</u>, 688 So.2d 1006 (Fla. 1st DCA), *rev. denied*, 697 So.2d 512 (Fla. 1997), that the "preservation requirements of Chapter 924 are not jurisdictional."

RULE OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE 9.140(b)(2)(B)(iv), IS THE FAILURE TO PRESERVE AN ALLEGED SENTENCING ERROR FOR APPEAL FOLLOWING A GUILTY PLEA A J URISDICTIONAL IMPEDIMENT TO AN APPEAL WHICH SHOULD RESULT IN A DISMISSAL OF THE APPEAL, OR IS IT A NON-JURISDICTIONAL BAR TO REVIEW WHICH SHOULD RESULT IN AN AFFIRMANCE?

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing facts, argument, and citations of authority, Respondent respectfully

requests that this Honorable Court deny jurisdiction for review of the decision of the Second District

Court of Appeal.